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INTRODUCTION

The stories presented in this booklet are the cul-
mination of many hours spent by students at Cloudland
High School researching their direct ancestors, some
of which date back to the 1700s. All students who
participated were seventh and eighth grade Reading
students. They are responsible for all information
either factual or fictional in their stories. ,

Many skills were used in researching this project.
The project incorporated art, English and history and
required personal contact and social studies skills.

The three primary goals of the collection of these
stories were as follows:
t
First, any profit made from the sale of these
booklets will be used to update the materials in our
Reading Department; ¥

Second, the collection will provide recognition,
as well as a permanent record, of ancestors for those
students involved in the project;

Most important, the project exposed the students to
a new and challenging learning situation.

I would like to express appreciation to all students
and their relatives for their efforts in collecting
these stories. Also, I would like to thank the faculty
of Cloudland High School and to Mrs. Sally Buckner and
her typing class. Thank you for making our project a
success.

Sincerely,

e

Ron D. Vance

January 1982

DANTEL AMDREW ARRCHOOD
by

Hark Stovens

Daniel Andrew Arrowood was born in 1887 in Crabtree about three miles below Roan Mountain,
Tennessee. He was the son of John and Lovrinnie Oaks Arrowood. Daniel was the oldest of six
chiftdren. lle hatl a twin brother named Alfred and two younper brothers whose names were Tke
el Bom. He had teo younper sistera whose names were Sally and Verbie. 1lis younpest sister
died at the ape of nine years old. Daniel, his brothers and sisters went to school at Crah-
tree. The School had one roem. Thelr teacher was Mrs. Minnie Julian. There were eight
rrales taupht in the same toom at the same time. Danlel dida't get much education. le only
went ta the third prade. Back then times were hard. There wasn't much work. |liis dad, .lohn,
made a Hving by farweing. They ralsed everythiop they ate. They would take corn to the mill
amt pet it ground inteo cornmeal so his mother, Loriannie, could make cornbread for them to eat.
Daniel quit school to help his dad farm. They ralsed cattle, hogs, chickens, and turkeys.
Once their eattle got lost and Daniel’s dad sent him out to search For the cattle, and he
came upon a copperhead and got bit. Daniel was lucky because there was a doctor who lived
close by, and he saved Daniel's life.

When Daniel and his family had to go to the store, they would have to walk for miles.
Daniel, his brothers and sisters didn't have any shoes so they had to walk barefooted. BRack
then some kids weren't Fortunate enough to haveshoes but they didn’'t mind. They were a
happy Family. Their mother made their clothes out of the chop sacks that hog feed came in.
Daniel and his twin brother Alfred loved to hunt. They would hunt rahbits and squirrels.
They would bring them home Forthe family to eat. They would go fishing with their dad and
catch all the fish they could eat.

Naniel, his dad, and brothers would have to cut all their wood cut of the mountains
to keep warm during the winter, They also had to use thewood to burn in their cockstove to
cook the meals. They didn't have clectricity so they had to use kerosene lamps. Ghen they
weren't working, they would play games to kecp themselves amused. His sisters, Sally and
Verbie, would help their mother with the house chores.

Back when the May flood came, Daniel was visiting his friends in Crabtree. lle got
stranded and had to stay overnight. His mother and father were worried sick because he didn't
come home. They thought he had drowned in the flood. The next day he came home, and his
mother and father were glad to see him. They were so happy to see him safe that they cried.

Danicl pot interested in musiec. lle learned to play the guitar and banjo. Ile would go
to Elizabethton to play for people at dances. Danlel enjoyed his music, but he declded lLe
wanted to join the army when he was seventecen years old., After he joined the army lhie was
stationed at Fort Mead, Maryland, where he eventually became a sargeant. lle stayed in the
army [ifteen ycars. While he was in the army he married Francis Mae Wayson. They had seven
children, There were four sons--George, larry, John, and Alicison; and there were three
daughters--Eva, Vivian, and Ruth. Daniel retired from the army after fifteen ycars and moved
back to Tennessee wherehe pot a job as an electrician. He helped wire the Bemberg Plant in
Elizabethton and then worked there after the plant was opened., He worked there until he
became 111 and was lald off. He died at the age of 56 in 1942.

MARY ANN ASHLEY
by
Robert Tribhle

tlary Ann Ashley was born on July 24, 1879, in Hughes, North Carolina, in a plnce called
Squirrel Creek. She stayed there until she was about 18 years old when her parents moved to
Shell Creek on the Bluegrass Road in Tenncssee, They bought property there and built a new
home . =

Mary Ann had one sister, Bethie Ashley, who married Robert Taylor Briggs two years after
her family moved to Tennessee. They had four children: one boy, David Wesley; three girls,
Ethel, Wellie and Annabell. Ethel married W. H. Ledford; Nellie mavtied Reort Ellint; and

Annabell married Clancy Pickena. David, the only boy, married Flessle Franklin.
Mary Ann's father gave them property on Bluegrass Road on which she and Behort hullt a

new home. They lived therc until Robert died on April 10, 1913, after a short illicss. The
dector said Rebert had typhoid Fever. Mary Ann was left with fanr small chdldron ta raf-na.
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she tarmed, talaed cottle, and mude a pood Hviog for beraell and hereld Wdeen.
father helped her very much, and her son David did much of the outside
and left home at ape fourteen.

Mary Ann'e
work until he marricd

Their mnrring‘.‘
They had one girl, Nancy Pauline, who

After Robert had been deod for nine yenrs, Mary Ann married Dave ledford.
did not turn ont wvery well, but she stayed with him.
married Coburn Jack Blackwell, -

In 1920 Ethel married and left home. 1In 1925 Nellie married and left home, and Annabell
left home and lived with Bettie Isaac. About this time Mary Ann, Dave, and Pauline moved to
Jolinson City. Mary ran a small grocery store for abount three years. ller marriage grew worse
go she and Pauline moved back to Bluegrass Road. They lived together until Pauline married
and left home.

So Mary Ann was left alone. One of Nellie's girls came to stay with her. She wvas
Mary Ruth Elliott who stayed with her until Mary Ann decided to sell her home and move in with
her daughter, Pauline Blackwell.

Several years later Mary vreceived word that her son David had been killed in an accident
in Bay, Idaho. This hurt Mary Ann to the point that she never got over his death. She had
him brought back to Shell Creeck and buried in the Isaac Cemctery.

Pauline decided to go to California, and so Mary Ann took turns stayiog with her three
daughters, Ethel, Nellie, snd Annabell. In the meantime, she divorced Dave Ledford and took
her old name back--Mary Ann Briggs.

In 1969 Mary Ann died from a brain hemorrage at the age of 90 at the home of her daughter,
Annabell Pickens, and was laid to rest beside her first husband, Robert Briggs, in the Isaac
Cemetery.

MACK BAKER
by
David Jones

My Paw Baker came from the state of North Carolina to the state of Tennessee when he
was about fifteen ycars old., His mother and Father, Davie and Mary Baker, had both died,
He came to live with his aunt Vernie Richardson, where he stayed until he was nincteen years
old apdhelped them farm. This is where he met Florence Winters, and they were married. They
built a two-room house. Then my mother was born in 1942, They had one more child, a sen
they named Cread Baker. Cread was nine yeara old when my prandmother got sick. Back then
they weren't sure just what was wrong with her, so grandpa took her to Virginia to a docter
who said she had cancer. My grandmother died in 1945, Paw moved to Upper Shell Creek and
1ived with the Garfield McKinney family. My mother and Cread stayed with our grandpa and
grandma Winters whose names were Ed and Carrie Winters. Paw Baker worked at a sawmill and
paid for his room and board. He worked for people like Luther Tipton, Floyd Moody and Will
Tipton. He was working for a man named Tom Kerley, cutting timber, when another mam cut a
tree on him and hurt him real bad. From there he retired and went on Social Security. Now
he is real sick with emphysema. lle stayed in the hospital most of the time. Faw was a hard
working man and always provided for my mother and Cread.

' EUGENIA BOONE
by
Tracie Boone

On September 28, 1BB4, on lleaton Creck a baby girl was born to John and Martha llicks
Julian. This baby girl was the fourth child of this couple. She was named Eugenia. The late
A. A. Julian was her oldest brother. Carrick was the next oldest. lle died at the age of
eighteen. Then folloved Neetie wlhio married the late Judpe Jomes N. Jullan, Tda who married
Will Garland (both dececased), and the youngest of the seven, Frank Julian who is also deceased.

Eugenia attended school on Heaton Creek, and her first school teacher was Jim Boone.
Other teachers were Bob Range, who later studied thedicipe and became a doctor, John Zappin,
and Edd Hayes. Those who knew Eugenia during her school days say she was never known to miss
a word in spelling. In those days and for many years "spelling bees" or "matches" were regular
forms of entertainment. For years Eugenia was the champion speller. ‘

2

H Fupenia 1iked a brother of her Flrst school teacher who lived in the nelphbarhoond . IM’trr
it wient by they declided to slgn a contract. . N. Boone went Lo Elizabethton to pet ;lok 3
yuriape license for them; while doing some errands [or a neightor, he mlsscd the traln bac 0
i Mountaln causbng him te get back to Heaton Creck late.

¢

e yonng eouple had planned to he macried by Mr. Boone's brother, Render f'm-m". who \:-'l!:;‘c
{ maplstrate hut chaopged thelr plans and declded to walt until the next day. Eupenia sp;|:
!Ii:lll with poml neighbors of hers, Hr. and Mrs. lke February. Mr. Fnhn‘mr:,;, :!Hlt[!‘;l‘. :n (:'llck)
lelpful to the voung couple, went early the next morning to H. N. Boone's Fat er;_ " i"ml.pg-.m]
yume and got a Methodist preacher who had spent the night there. His numnhuaskr.qt. .“m amd .,
t- comp to the Fehruary home and the wedding cercmony was perlormed beft;ri- rr-:!q as F.N‘n“‘
felinnry prepared a hig woedd Inp breakfast for the newlyweds and Ehe min “N}‘} 130.1‘;.3{ ;11-
piltan became Mrs. W. N. Boune. They were marclied on St Patrick's Day, Marc - X -

poone dlied Aupust 9, 1957.
The Boone's lived on Heaton Creek until 1940. They then moved te Hampton Creek. They
wilt thelr house on llampton Creek.

Ten children were born to this cowple. Crumley who lives in Ellzabethton; (lk'l;; lvn:é'
tlalne, and Forrest all of Rean Mountain: Mary Andrews of Watauga; Oran uhnb !.spnm‘: M::n:hﬂ;
Jerman who died at age 23 Pauline and Paul who were born Dctober 8, 1918, but Pau
wame year; and Pauline Brown of Neport News, Virginia.

h County under the dlrection of
Mra. Boone started the flrst hot lunch program in Carter
Yirs. Fr:nk E::gan. ‘hls program began with the free lunch program at Cloudland High :cho:l:’ e
Mr. H. T. Shell was principél. Mrs. Toone cooked for nine years. The First year, t edi : e
were to bring from home a plate, a glass, a fork, a spoon, a soup bowl, and a dessert sh.

Mrs. Doone was active in church work and the PTA and polities.

Hany grandchildren and many great-grandchildren were born to Mrs. Boone. She died on
November 1965, To me she was a great lady. She was my Grandmother Boone.

®

[ CAIN AND MARY ANM DOWLING

by
Mary Ann Creen and Vivian Leiph Shell
Caln Bowl g, the son of Jacob and .lane Rowlinp was horn an December 26, lﬂ?‘!.wﬂ:arz :m:
gildwell, the daughter of Taylor and Martha Caldwell, was born on March 14, 1885. ey spen

ltlwlr childhood in the Roan Mountain area.

Taylor Caldwell died January 23, 1893. Marth Caldwell dled September 19, 1967. .Jacob

||!owllnp. dicd December 23, 1895. Jane Bowling died August 27, 1894,

Mr. Cain Bowling and Miss Mary Ann Caldwell were married at Crabtree, Tel;?esse‘e, .la::nry
6, 1905, In the prescnce of Pemder Borne. They had filve children: Ilnzchnou np, horn
April 7, 1906; Katherine Bowling, born on May 5, 1914; Willfam David Bouun:.,
1918; Ruth Bowling, born on May 2, 1923; and Evelyn Bowling, born on Apr ¥

1926.

They had two children. . C:

finzel Bowling married H. C. Waycaster of Hompton, Tennessee. .78

Aycs r |s decensed. FKatherine Bowling married Roy Brown of Roan Mountain, Tennessce.
::ﬁrn.t; chilldren. Roy Brown is decenscd. Willlam David Bowling married Lu;:‘::: Eﬂuli::..ed
They had no children. William and Lucille Bowling are both deceased. Ruth nglng e
Charles Appers of llampton, Tenncssee. They had nine children. Evelyn Rowling m.:;;r puu.mt. T
peadley of Elizabethton, Tennessee. They had three children. Mary and Cain Pow dr\:","d e
entlre 1lfetime at Ceabtree, Tennessee. Cain worked on the railroad, They fa.;'m; ‘Ulo{r :'I‘othos
thelr own food, They made their own clothes out of cotton material. They washe I’i.':] S8
outslde In n tub on a washboard. They made the soap that she washed her clurihr:t u ;il(\us i
cooked on a wood stove. She made her quilts out of cotton material. She mad e[rer r i
of cotton material and filled them with feathers. She had to carry her water from n sp P
kept the milk and butter in a spring box.

f 60. Mary Ann Bowling died
Caln Bowling died of a stroke on March 26, 1949, at the age o
of a heart nttscE on Septembher 19, 1967, at the age of B3. They pave the land that the Rowlling
Chanel Methedist Church was huilt on. They helped bulld the church.

W

born on October 22,




Caln and Mary Aon wure my great-grandparents. [ wasn named aftor my grvﬁt-nl?ﬂﬂmfthur.
I llve In my great-grandparenta house. Cain and Mary Aon were Vivian Leigh Shell's prent-great-
great aunt and uncle on th: Mackley side of the family.

JAMES WILLIAM CLARK
by
Rachel Vance

William Clark who was my great-great-grondfather Founded Clacktown about two humulred years
ago. HWilliam Clark and his Family crossed the mountalns from Watauga County, North Carolina,
to settle thelr own community--a remote 600-acre tract of mountain land located between Tiger
Creek and Western North Carclina.

This was the beginning of Clarktown and for three or four gencrations it grew as Willlan
Clark, his son, and his pgreat-grandsons cleared the land of its timber and farmed it. Some of
the Clarks also herded sheep.

My grandmother Hanecy Clark Miller who was William's granddaughter is my grandmother on
my mother's side. This is what she told me about how her grandfather came to settle in Clark-
town: He (William) and his two brothers came from the old country (England) and landed somewhere
around the coast of Virginia or Morth Carolina. Upon reaching Amcrlea, they sepacated on the
coast and both went their own way. And it 1is told that two of them scttled on the same mountain.
One on one side and the other on the other side of the same mountain and didn't know where the
other. brother lived until one of them died.

But William traveled on to Watauga County years later until he came to the place now
called Clarktown. My great, great, grandfather William bought the 600 acres of land that the
town 1s on for one dollar an acre. Willlam was married to Susane Tusk of Valle Cruz, North
Carolina who lived to be 96 years old. Both she and her hushand are buried in the family
graveyard in Clarktown. They were the parents of larrison, Jim, John, Jasper, William Newton,
and Dove Clark. Ther daughters were Carolina who marrigd Blake Byrd; Adelaid who married Tim
Franklin; and Elizabeth who married Zackery Taylor. All lived in Clarktown except Harrison
who remarried in Watauga County, North Carolina, when the family moved westward over the
mountain. Carolina's husband, Blake Byrd, and Adelaide's husband, Tim Franklin, made shoes
for everyone on the mountain. Most of the childremshad sheep, and some of the family took on
the job of shearing the sheep, while others catded the wool. Socks that they wore were knitted
by the:women. This is how they got their clothes to wear.

The only way across to the community at that time was by wagons or horseback, and there
wasn't a store within eight miles of the mountain. When they just had to po to the store for
something they really had to have, they would throw a saddle over an old horse and just take
off, and in about an hour they would be a A. J. Miller's or later on at Blevin's Store un
Tiger Creek. 1f it'rained there wasn't any golng at all. Tiger Creek would be so swollen they
could not get across it or "ford it" as the old people called it. William Clark's sons con-
atructed the Firat school on Clarktown which was also used Tor chureh., Tt was standiop wnedl
Just a few yecars apo. My muther remembers grownlng up in Clarktown and attending elivrch on
Decoration Day with the people that still lived on the mountaln. ‘1lie school and church have
since burned down. One big event concerning the school and my grandmother was the Elrst flag-
raising at Clarktown. John Arrowood and Loss Morgan brought an American Flag to the Clarktown
school. Walter Morgan was the teacher at that time ‘at the school. The daughters of Jolin
Clark were the first to ralsee an Amerlican flag on Clarktown. They were Nancy and Dove Clark.
It was a great honor for my grandmother. William Clark also had a grist mill and a sawmill
hoth of which were in great demand. Until then most of the homes were log structured, but
after the saumill was bullt therc were some frame houses constructed. The old grist mlll was
operated by water. After William's death the mill was operated by his son.

Dove operated the grist mill. The whole town depended on it to grind their meal and flour
(corn and wheat), but the sawmill kept going from hand to hand. My great unmele, Charlic Clack,
said that in the spring of 1917, the year he was married, there was a killing frost on June 12
and all the crops were rulned. The growning season just became so short, they had to move out.
He also remembered going to drive the cows in to milk one night and discovering From one hill
on the mountainside that he could sce from that one spot the smoke coming from 23 different
chimneys. So, one could say that at one time Clarktown was a busy little town. According to my
grandmother, when the seasons changed for a few years, the days were so short and cold, the
summer months were also short and cold. They couldn't even grow a good crop before it got killed
by a freeze. It just became so hard to earn a living there that the younger gencration moved off
the mountain to Find jobs. Willlam Clark is now dead; so are most of his children and many of
his grandchildren. The land is still there, but Clarktown now is owned by the forest service.

TRA CLAWSON
hy
Sally Clawson

fn December 25, V04, Chelstmas Day, a baby was born te Hermon Taylor and Mary Molly
Clawson. Ils nawe was Ira Edward Clawson. He was born in a small house in Rutler, Tennossen.
lle wina horn at home back when you didn’t go to the doctor, the doctor came to you, Tra Edward

started sehool at the ape of sfx and wenl Lo the sixth prade. e took bread and felly or
bread amt milk for his lunch, [l put hils milk and hread In the spring to keep It from spol ling.
People usced to keep butter and wllk In the spring.

When Granilpa was elphteen hie pot a Job at the Pletshurg Lumber Company where he met ny
Gramdma lessle Guy.  Shortly after thal (about a year later), they pot marcied. Thelr first
ehlld was a boy named Alvin. They hiad nine more kids. About six months after he was horn,
Alvin died. CGrandpa sald he never Found out what happened to Alvin, hot lie sald he knew that
the baby was in llcaven and some day he would see Alvin again. Crandpa worked at™a sawmill until
he got his leps broken when a log rolled over him. After that all his kids didn't want him to
work at a sawmill any longer. lle retired. Only one of his children started warking as a lumber-
Jack, and he was my daddy, Tra Edward Clawson, Jr, Daddy still has a mill and 1 guess always
@l11l.  About one month before Grandpa died he had houpht a plece of land on Reach Mountain,
but he lived out on Mill Crcek, We went over to his house, and he was real sick. And Daddy
and Mom took him to the hospital. About 8:00 Daddy took me and my cousin to onr house to
take care of the kids. We stayed up all night. At 2:15 on Monday morning he died, but Anpie
and I didn't find out until 1:00 Monday afternoon. It broke everyone's hearts, but someday
we'll get to see him, just as he got to see Alvin. Grandpa died November 24, 1980.

JESSIE KELLY COLE
by
Karen Cole

One day long ago on July 17, 1896, a baby boy was born to Mr. and Mrs. Grant Cole. lie
Brew up to be a shy and honest boy. He loved school and the work he had to do around the house.
e went to church every Sunday even though he had to wnlk to church. When he pot nlder, he
fell in love, pot married and settled down in a large house hoping to ralse a Eamily. |le
picked a pood wife for she was a terrific cook. Mot long after they were married they had thelr
Eirst baby. 1In all, they had seven beautiful children and their names were: Jerry, Rose,
Violet, Kathaleen, Less, Dessaree, and Arvel. Me taught his children right from wrong and good
from bad. lle provided for his children hy growing wheat and corn to sell. .lessie's children
grew up. s son, Jerry, and his son's wife had a child, Every morning If Jessie's grandchild
wanted candy, he would walk five miles to the nearest store to pet candy. .Jessie would bring
people home for dinner and he would always tell them that his grandchild was his own child.

Jesale was not godng Lo put up with drunks around hils house, lis ehildrens® ehildren who
are now going to school are wanting to be just like their grandfather. The man 1 am talking
about is my grandfather. He was a good man and treated people with respect. Some of his
children are growing up doing wrong, and I'm sure it would hurt him 1f he were here today. le
never drank, smoked, or gambled in his llfe. Even though people treated him wrongly, he always

prayed for them. lle was a noble type person and was loved by everyone except his encmies (who
were drunks).

Jessie became very 111. The Jdoctors said there wasn't anything they could do for him
except pray. He stayed in the hospital for a very long time., The longer he was there the
sicker he became. Then one sunny day as I was coming home From school T saw “Slow Funeral”
sipns near my house. 1 was too young to know what they meant, but when T pot home my dad was
walting for me at the door. lie told me that my grandfather had died. Of course T understood
what that meant and I will always remember that day. On his tombstone they put: “lessie Kelly
Cole; Died + 1975; Born July 17, 1896; A brave and honest man." His last words were "1'11
see you in the pearly gates of Heaven." Then he was gone.

DALLAS CORDELL
by
Tammie Shell

On December 27, 1897, a baby boy was born to Adolphus and Mar aret Cordell.
wag named Dallas Victor Cordell. Dallas was the youngest of three hoys.
brothers named Henry amd Roscoe.

The baby boy
He had two older




Ballas prew up In Carter County. He went to schonl at the Upper Shell Creck Sehool,
the e of thivteen, he started golopg to Boone, North tarvollom, with his fatler
EERTETTY B ST

1o wark Iy n
He worked with his [ather at the camp untfl he was tweonty=lour years of npe.

Malbasw mareled o younp mabden by the name of Flevey Vanee.

They were mareled Do Boone
Horth Carolina, In 1921.

After they were married, they MMwved with Dallas' parents.

Daltaa and hils wife moved back to Carter County when he was twenty-six,
e Inon barn whilech they turned into a dwelling houne.
they Tlved o this place.  They named him CLL(ton,

For auhille, they
Dallas and hin wife had one son whi)e

Dallas started working at the North Amerlcan Rayon at the ape of thirty. lle hullt a new
hemse gnd had one more son whose name was Bynum. lle alse had two daughters-~Alexle and Gladys,
Khile working at North American Rayon, he worked also as a farmer, ralsing tobacco, corn, cows,
hogs, chickens and a parden.

At the ape of forty, he qult working at Morth Amerlcan Rayon to take care of his disahled
parents.  Ballas and his wife moved in the house with his parents to taoke care of them both
day and nipht.

At the ape of farty, Dallas started working at the store which his parents had operated
liefore they had beeome disabled. Dallas bought nnd sold Furs and chickens. To earn some extra
miney, he dug roots and gathered herbs and sold them at the herb house in Roan Mountain.

Dallas’ habblea were hunting and fishing.
and all night.
fish.

Sometimna lie would po hanting and stay nll day
lie loved [ishing so much that he decided to build his own pond nnd stock it with
lle stocked his pond with bluegill, trout, bass, and walleye.

During this period there was no electricity in this reglon., 011 lamps were used Tor lipht
at nlght and clothes were washed on a washboard. Clothes were hung out to dry in the sunshine
hecause there were no electric dryers. For heat, woo‘d and coal stoves were used.

Dallas was a very likeable person in the community.
the U'pper Shell Creek section of Carter County.

He attended the Christian Church in

On the morning of December 25; 1974, Dallas arose early, ate a very heart hreakfast, and
then went to the store. lle sat down in a chair, where his son found him dend of a heart attack,
allas was burled In the Cordell Cemetery.

KEN CORDELL
by
Heather Cordell

My grandfather, Ken Cordell, was born on May 15, 1902, ilfs mother and father were named
#at and Nancy Jane Cordell. His mother died when he was only a year old. His father was a
farmer and a timberman who owned a sawmill. My grandfather's Father and his family settled
here after buying much land in what is now called Shell Creek and Bear Branch.

After his wife's death my grandfather's father married a woman named Lillie Potter who is
now ninety-six years old and lives in Elizabethton, Tennessee.

My pramifather met his wife at church, fler name in Tva Tee Miller. They married a short
time later. My grandmother is the daughter of Jolin and Julia Shell Miller. My prandparents
later had a son, my father, Marshall Cordell who married Louise Ashley Cordell. They have
five children.

My grandpa and grandma moved to Kentucky where my grandpa worked as a teamster driving
horses that pulled logs to the sawmill. After a long period of time he developed theumatism
and had to come home walking on crutches. The doctors said that he would never walk apain,
hut he came home and overcame hia illneas.

lle then came back home and
Then my grandpa developed tuberculosis. He died on September
lle was just thirty and my father was only six years old.

Grandpa went to Arizona and worked on a ranch for two years.
worked at Morth American Rayon.
2, 1931,

e =
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FLETCHER C. GOUGE
by
Karen Gouge

Fletcher Calvin Gouge wns the son

of the late Dass and Minnie Winters Gouge. He attended
the upper licaton Creek Holiness Church.

He worked as a painter and a produce salesman. During
the war he worked at the Holston Arsenal. lle was married to Mrs. Edith Henson., They had nine
sona: Fletcher Gouge, Jr., Elizabethton; Kenneth, Zeb, Jim, Robert, Larry, Tony, Teddy and
Dayton Gouge; 1id4 doughters were Mrs. Brenda Bartly ond Mrs. Linda Powell. He had five
brothera--Frank and R. D. Couge, .loncsboro, lloward, Riehard and Earnest Goupe, Johinson City.

He had two sisters--Mra. Oakley Barlow and Mrs. Ivelee Kilduff both of Johnson City. [MHe had
twenty-four grandchildren. Fletcher died at the age of 64 at Carter County Memorial Hospital
following a brief illness on November 15, 1976.

THOMAS GRAY, JR.
by
Robin Gray

On Februacy 28, 1918, Thomas M. Gray Jr. was born, the first child of Mr. Thomas M. Cray,
Jr., and Mrs. Bertha Archer Cray. He later had five brothers and two sisters. His hrothers

are Carrcoll, Paul, Beryl, Dana end Jimmy. His sisters are Evelyn and Mary Belle. Evelyn died
at the age of three.

Tom attended Cloudland and graduated in 1938, After he graduated he worked at Harris
Lumber Company in Johnson City as a lumber grader. Im 1940 he started working at North American
Rayon in Elizabethton as a pipe fitter until the time of his death.

On January 13, 1939, Tom married Alma McGuire. He became the father of three children,
Wilburn, Carolyn and Richard. Wilburn is an electronic engineer for the Telephone Company in
Atlantas and is the father of two children Tammy and Tracie. Carolyn was a math teacher for
five years and is now a housewife and the mother of two children--Kim and Brian. She is now
living in West Virginia. Richard 1s a pharmaceutical salesman snd is asttending law school in
Fnoxville. All three of Tom's children graduated from East Tennessee State University with
honors.

Being a man of many talents Tom liked to write. He wrote many poems which were published
On October 31, 1979, Tom wrote a poem called DePeyster's Cry which was published in an Over-
mountain Vietory Trail pamphlet and was put to music and sung at the Overmountain Victory
Trail celebration. Tom wrote many letters to the editors of newspapers about worthy causes
in the commmlty. le nlso enjoyed photopraphy and took pictures of nnture scencs. He developed
the pictures lilmself with liis own equipment. Tom was on the Wildflower Tour. lle wns honored
at many dinners given by the Wildflower Tour organization. MHe also helped to organize the
Mrdwalk orpanization. Tom started writing about the Overmountain mane and started organizing
the Overmountain Vlctory Trall im 1975. The trail starts at Abingdon, Virginia, and ends at
King's Creek, South Carolina. Tom was the Vice Grand Marshal in 1977. He had been the County
Marshal several times before. 1In 1978 Tom was the Grand Marshal.

Tom was active in the First Baptist Church of Elizabethton and the Hamptén Masonic Lodge.
He was also a membership chairman for the Watauga Historical Society and a member of the
Watauga Genealogical Club.

On April 13, 1979 Thomas M. Gray, Jr., died of an apparent heart attack at the age of 61.

FRED HARRISON
by
Pat Harrison

Fred was born in Roan Mountain in a little cabin upon a hill. His real name was Fred
Howard, but when he was sixteen he got into trouble with the law so he went to Kentucky and
changed his name to Fred Harrison. His parents were John and Rosy Howard who never saw him
again until he was twenty-four.

Fred came home and met Sadie Harrisen. They dated for two years then got married at the
age of twenty-six, They moved to Buck Mountain and lived there until he was sixty-four. Then
they moved to Valley Forge where they lived until he died at the age of seventy. . They had Five
boys and six girls,
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Mne day old Fred went on a hunting trip. lle grew very tired in the woods, so he sat dingn
and went to sleecp. When he woke up it was dark. He started home and saw a herry bush, and ha
began eating the herries. A bear got after him and before he got home the bear ate the whola
rear end of his pants.

WILLEY HILL
by
Eddie Triplett

Mrs. Hill was the daughter of Mr. Tom Whitehead and Mrs. Sarah Ann Whitehead. Mrs. Hill
married A. B. Hill, and they had 12 children--seven sons and five daughters. Thelr names wera
Jim, Walter, Kate, Will, Glenn, Bonnie, Bell, Floyd, Ethel, Maxie, Clyde and Crawford. Just
8ix are living today.

Mr. and Mrs. Hill were members of Little Mountain Church.
They had a little home of about two or three rooms. They had wooden floors. They didn't go to
stores like today. Mrs. Hill made Mr. Hill's shirts and pants. They could only get one pair
of shoes each year and it would last them the whole year. They wouldn't wear them in the
summer, just in’ the winter. They told me that the shoes were "built good."

They lived nmear Fork Mountain.

Mrs. Hill and her family would grow things like corn, pens, onlons, tomatoes and potatoes.
They would also make applebutter, jams and jellies.

Mrs. Hill had two brothers and two sisters. Their names were Ora, Liviles, Davie and Bill.
They are all dead as I know of.

Mrs, Hill didn't work she just stayed home and took care of her Family.
was told was a hard worker who cared about her family.
heart trouble. She is burled near Bear Cage Road.. %
spooky feeling as if someone was watching me.

Mrs. H111 I
Mrs. Hill died in 1940. She died of
ien I went to the graveyard T got a

I don't know but it could have been Mrs. Hill.

PAULINE BARNETT
by
Viencen Hitechew and Brian Gouge

Pouline DBarpett was born October 16, 1940. She was delivered at home by Dr. Bingham,
physician of Roan Mountain, Tennessee. She was the daughter of Leonard and Rosie Odom Barnett.
Fauline was the youngest of five children which included Stella, Bonnie and the twins Clarence
and Herman. She lived with her family in Roan Mountain, and attended grade school at Cove
Creek School, a two-room school that contained grades one through eight.

Pauline's mother died on January 1, 1949, of tuberculosis when Pauline was nine years old.
Her father married Belvia Winters when Pauline was fourteen. At the age of fifteen, Pauline
quit school and traveled to Pennsylvania to live with her aunt for two years. Three years
after she returned to Tennessee, she met Sam Oaks, Jr. and married him on January 11, 1958.
The two oldest of her children, Penny and Larry, died. She then had three more--Anita, Bob,
and Paula. After eight years of marriage, her husband died of a gunshot wound.

On April 6, 1968, Pauline married Wally Hitechew, and two years later she gpave birth to
her sixth child, Viencen. Pauline became 111 on Christmas Day in 1972. The doctors started
treatments on her. There were several different kinds of treatments. When Pauline first got
aick, she thought she just had some accidental bruises., That was the first symptom of her
disease. Then she took the flu and had to go to the doctor, She had been for checkups before
and she knew her blood was low, but they checked her finger nails for blood color by pressing
them. It went from these small symptoms to more serious ones. Her doctor realized that her
illness was serious and then he knew she had cancer. The doctors at Duke University Hospital
immediately started cobalt treatments on her. The treatments made her hair come out and her
skin very tender. She seemed to be getting along well until about the last few months of
treatment, She had bone marrow tests and it was found the disecasc had gotten worse. The
doctors asked for permission to use a new treatment on her that had only been used twice before.
This was the only chance for Pauline--that the treatment would work. Tt didn't. Her liver
swelled slowly until it burst. It was eighteen months from the time Pauline found out she had
cancer until she died. The doctors told her Family that 1f she had not sought tredtment when
she did she would have died sooner.
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Pauline spend most ot her time in the hospital after her {llncss was dlagnosed. The
doctors tried so many different things in treating the disease including giving her raw hlood.
The treatments would help Pauline for awhile, but then she would get worse. She wnsn't afrald
to die, The only thing she didn't want was to leave her famlly, but she knew God was ready
for her. She died at home just two days before her youngest son was to turn Elve on August
23, 1974. She was buried at the Hughes family cemetery. Pauline was a happy person and lived
8 very fulfilled 1ife. She had a great deal of courage and never feared death itself. She made
everyone love her, and she is remembered and loved by all her family.

TAMMY GAIL HWODGE
by
Rebecca Ann Hodge

Tammy Gall Hodge was born May 15, 1966. She had a sister named Rebecca Ann Hodge; her
parents were Browmlow and Judy Hodge. She was a member of the Roan Mountain Church of Christ
end attended Cloudland Elementary School. Her grandparents were Dayton Harmon and Mr. and Mrs.
Plerce Hodge of Roan Mountain. When she became real sick, Tammy had a home teacher. She
became sick when she was about seven. Her illness was uncontrolable. She stayed in the hospital
for a long tlme. Tammy couldn't eat snything with salt because she had high bloed pressure,
but she atill had some chips now ond then. They never bothered her. She had an aunt named
Fay Hodge and an uncle named Willie Hodge. When she got out of the hospital, she was glad
because she had been in the hospital for a long time. Tammy had a dog named Nukie. She really
liked her dog. She died with it in her hands., The dog is still living. Tammy had jet black
halr, dark brown eyes. She and I had the same kind of clothes, She has another aunt and
uncle named Fred and Frances Lebean. They live in Flint, Michigan. They have & son named
Sells Labean.

Tammy died at 4:30 a.m., Thursday, May 29, 1975, at home following an illness of two
years. She was born at Elizabethton, Tennessee. Her dad Brownlow Hodge was born December
22, 1942, at Banner Elk, Morth Carolina. Her sister Rebecca Ann Hodpge was born October 29,
1968, at Elizabethton. She had lots of friends at school until she had to get a home teacher.
Tammy liked her home teacher but she didn't like to get her homework. She had a boyfriend who
wvas kind of cute. He had black hair, and his name was Mark. She loved her mom, dad and eister.
Tammy's favorite food was greens with lots of vinegar.

One day Tammy went to the store with her grandpaw and got all kinds of food.
"If I can't have it all I just don't want anything." She went back to her grandpaws house
and started singing Rock of Ages. So her grandpaw said "Come on and let's po to the store,
snd you can have anything you want." Tammy bought what she wanted and then she was happy.

Tammy said,

Tammy 1s burled in Markland Cemetery.
Roan Mountain Church of Christ.

The funeral service was led by Hansel Winters ot

JOUN ROBERT HUGHES

y
Todd Hill

Back in the mountains outside of Buladeen, North Carolina, on September 8, 1899, a little
baby boy was born, and his name was John Robert Hughes. As a boy, he grew up very slowly. |lle
was a very mischievous little boy. le loved to get into all kinds of messes. lle lHked to lay
out of school, too. When he was six years old he got to go hunting with his dad for the first
time. When he was seven, he went out to kill squirrels on his own. In his spare tlme he had
to chop wood, work in the garden, and when I say work in the garden I mean he had to really
work! lle had to pull weeds Erom out of the rows; he had to hoe the vegetahles; he had to help
plow the garden; and he had to plck the vegetanbles. Besides chopping wood and working in
vegetable gardens, John had to feed all the chickens, the cows, the horses, and the dogs. e
really had a full-time job. He liked to not only help around the house, but he liked to be of:
by himself. The best place he liked to be was the woods around his house. le also liked te
fish. He had some of the best Eishing lioles in the world to fish in. MHe caught many fish.

He caught rainbow trout most often. He didn't give the fish to anyone else to clean bur did it
himself, and sometimes he even cooked them. When he was 17, John started dating girls. He
wae & tall, slinky boy.

On Harch 5, 1903, he and a young girl by the name of Vernie Herrel were united in marrlage
in the middle of the road. John had many different jobs during his Ilfetfme. le was a carpen-
ter and also a beggar. When he wasn't doing carpenter work or begging he put out a parden and
nlso went fishing and hunting. John Robert Hughes and Vernie llerrel not only were farmers, but
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they were the proud parents of Eive children. Their children's names were Pauline, John Wealey,
Loy, Mack and Dwight. John Wesley, Loy and Mack are all deccased. John Robert Hughes worked
moat of his 1ife at not only carpentry and being a beggar but he also had other Joba. He loved
to go hunting for raccoons and squirrels. Most people go hunting even though they can't shoot

a gun but John was a very good shot. John was a member of Burbank Free Will Baptist Church.

Together his five children gave John seventeen grandchildren. John and Vernle had nineteen
great-grandchildren, .

John Robert flughes and Vernie Hughes watclied thelr children grow up very mrlowly. TPauline
married William (1111 and they had five children. Then the rest of John's and Vernie's children
got marrled. It was sad to see all of their children leaving and getting marrled, even though
their children didn't move away but only moved down the road a little ways. After hia children
were gone, John kept working at different jobs, Vernle worked also. One of her joba was as
a cook at the elementary school. She was one of the first cooks at the school,

After a few years John Robert retired and from then on chopped wood and worked in hia garde
John told some of the best stories I have ever heard. John Hughes told storfes about when he
went hunting and fishing. He also told stories of signs—that is when the moon is full or
when it tells what the weather will be. On May 10, 1977, John Robert Hughes died. I knew him
only nine years. During those nine years he was the preatest man I have ever known.

WILSON HUGHES
by
Hissy Birchfield

Wilson Hughes lived in Avery County, North Carolina, until 1942, He then moved to Roan
Mountain, Tennessee. He had four brothers and three sisters. He married Darcus McCoury in
1921.

Wilson's parents were Wilt and Lawa King Hughes. Darcus' parents were Ben McCoury and
Matilda Freeman. Darcus and Wilson had ten children and three died as infants. The second
oldest child is my granny, Edith McMahan. My great-grandfather died when he was eighty-six,
I can remember him coming through the field right befork the mail run. When he became 111
it was so sad to see him laying in that hospital so quiet. We were waiting for him to get
better, but one day the Lord took him away. It still hurte for granny to talk about him. He

read the Bible, he was a mason and a very good man.

VIRGINIA ETHEL JACKSON
by
Billy Thompson -

Virginia Ethel Jackson was born in Patrick County, Virginia, on January 24, 1900. She
had five brothers and three sisters. My grandmother Virginia only went to the fourth grade.
Her mother was very 111, and she had to quit school and help take care of her family. Besides
she had to walk four miles to school. My grandmother was married when she was fifteen. She
married to Clady Briggs and had four children. He worked on the railroad until he died of
pneumonia in 1936. He was only 36 years old. My grandmother had four children to raise by
herself. So she sewed clothes to make a living. Her children's names were Melissia Ilene,
George Dewey, Cecil and Letha Alice. Melissia Ilene Bripggs Is now 59 years old; George Dewey
was killed in World War II at Iwo Jima Island pn his twenty-third birthday the American flag
was taised on Iwo Jima on February 23, 1945); Cecil Briggs is 47 years old and 1lives at Newport
Mews, Virginia; Letha Alice is 47 years old and lives in Ashboro, Worth Carolina. George Dewey
was buried in Iwo Jima Cemetery and was eventually reburied in 1947 in the United States.

My grandmother moved to Winston Salem, Morth Carolina,in 1910. She lived there until she
met my grandfather in 1941. She married Lawrence Alvin Hooper in December 1941. She was 41
yeara old and he was 63. They moved to Newport News, Virginia, and there my mother was born.
She was Annie Bell Hooper. My grandmother was 43 end my grandfather was 65 at the time my
mother was born. In 1941 after they had moved to Mewport News, my grandmother went to work at
the army post at Fort Eustis, Virginia. 5he had eight people who worked for her. She ran n
tailor's shop that fixed the uniforms for the new GIs. At that time Ceneral Dwight D. Eisenhour
was commander of Fort Eustis., My grandmother also fixed clothes for him. 1In 1951 my grand-
mother and grandfather and mother moved back to Winston Salem, Worth Carelina. My mother
married my father when shé was 15 years old and my father was 16. They had three children--—
Donme Tammy and me.
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Hy grandfather was a palnter and carpenter. Ile 1ived to be BO yeara old. He died of n
heart attack on March 10, 1960. My prandmather moved back to Newport News in 1968, She still
sewed and made dresses and wedding gowns for people. One Wednesdny morning she was sitting
at the table talking to my great uncle and died of a heart attack. Thia was on February 25,
1970. She wns 70 ycars old,

EARNEST L. JOHNSON
i by
William Burrow

Farneat JIohnson wan a good man. 1o lived on Fork Mountaln on A farm, and raised animals
such as pigs, cows and chickens. le was marrled to Mannie Caldwell. They met in Tennecssce
and had nine children, two girls and seven boys. They were named Bruce, Harold, Ed, Martha,
D. D., C. C., Abe, Ella, and Edmond Johnson. His wife, Mannie, died in 1948, She died with a
tumor. Earnest was working at the plant in Elizabethton at that time. Two years later Earnest
had married Mrs. Roxy Welly. She lived in Mampton, Tennessee, They met at Brown's Store in
Hampton. He was still living on his farm on Fork Mountain. They were married in Hampton at
Charley Campbell's Church. They had six children--five girls and one boy. The names were
Linda, Lois, Shirley, NWina, Dina, and Frankie Johnson. Shirley Ann Johnson died with the
fever in 1964, and a week later her sister Nina Kristen Johnson died with the same disease.
Their birthdays were the same day and month. Nina Kristen was born on Shirley's birthday.
Eleven years later it was discovered that Mr. Johnson had cancer. It had eaten out his insides
and he would not live long.

Mr. Johnson used a wood-burning cook stove and lanterns for light. He had a grandfather
clock that ran by winding it. Mr. Johnson was getting along good and then the cancer attacked
his liver. MNe had to go back into the hospital.where he died a few days later. He willed all
his belongings to his children.

CAIN JULIAN
by
Michelle Hicks

Caln William Julian was borm on Heaton Creek on March 22, 1896. 1lis father and mother
were LaFate and Sarah Twiggs Julian. The house in which he was born was torn down in the
1920s. Another house now stands in the same place--five miles south of Roan Motintain. Cain
owned 65 acres on which he raised corn, potatces, beans, and other vegetablea, He also raised
cattle, sheep, plps, horses, and chickens; and occasionally he ralsed turkeys. On onc oceasion
thirty turkeys disappecared out of an apple tree in one night. They never returned and their
disappearance 1s still a mystery. Some of the fruit trees which Cain set out are still standing
today. The farm was all in trees, bushes, and briars when Cain was a boy, and as he grew up
he helped clear the land

Great-grandfather Cain built a small dam which diverted water to a mill house. In the
mill house was @ grist mill on which corn was ground for the neighbors. 1In this mill house
there was also a dynamo which made electricity. This was years before electricity came to
Heaton Creek. Cain also ran his saw with energy created by the waterwheel.

There weren't any bridges across the rivers, or creeks, when great-grandfather was grow-
ing up. 1In the winter, the crecks would freeze over and for months people would cross on {ce.
The nearest town was Roan Mountain. Great-grandfather would hook the horses to the wagon and
go to the store, to Elizabethton and Johnson City to peddle apples, potatoes, and beans. This
would take two or three days. He would take a quilt and pillow and sleep in the wagon.

Creat-grandfather was one of the first people in the area to own a car. He was a farmer,
a minister, and a school teacher. He was married to Delia McKinney in 1916. Delia is my
great-grandmother and a very active woman. She ground corn at the grist mill, fed the livestock
milked the cows, fed the chickens, and pathered the eges.  She had a full-time Job, plus her
housework. DPelia now lives on the Nath Garland farm {n Roan Mountain. Delia and Caln ralsed
three children, Norman, Nath, and Geneva. My great-grandfather has been dead for twenty-five
years as of October 18, 1981.

1

The farm on Heaton Creek is now owned by Larry HMcClanazhan. The farm is grown up in trees

as it was years ago. It 13 interesting to hear my grandmother Geneva Blevins tell all of
these historic tales.
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They raised
They, in turn,

My grandmother Ceneva is married to John Sterlen Blevins, my grandiather.
two children, Jolin, Jr., and Evangeline. Evangeline married llenty Hicks, Jr.
had four pirls, Kimberly, Michelle, and Sandra Dee and Cynthia Lee the twins. When T was
three years old, Kimberly eight years old, and the twins two months old, our Daddy was killed
in a tractor-traller truck. When the public hears us apeank of Daddy Sterl and Mother Geneva
we are referring to our grandpnrents who took over when we lost our real daddy.

Ronnie Vance's great-grandfather owned the First radio that my Mother Geneva ever heard.
She enjoyed golnp to Nrownlow Julian's house and listening to the Grand Ole Opry. ller favorite
was old Dave Macon,

As time passed, great—grandfather sold the Farm in 1946. The buildings were torn down
and the land is again being covered in timber as it was many years ago.

JAMES NORTON JULIAN
by
Kelly Julian and .Jon Julian

James Norton Julian was born in 1808 and died in 1888. He is buried in the old Julian
graveyard on the land that was given to him by his father-in-law, France Hampton. This cemetery
{s in the Heaton Creek section near Roan Mountain, Tennessee. This land is now part of Eagle
Nest Ranch.

James Julian came to Roan Mountain sometime in the 1820's or 1830's. Ille was invited to
Roan Mountain by France Hampton to teach school. Hampton and Julian met at Knoxville, Tennessce
while Hampton was plcking up dry goods for his store in Shell Creek. James was fairly well
educated for his day and Mr. Hampton told him they needed a school teacher in Roan Mountain.
Julian moved from Knoxville to Roan lountain and begdn teaching for $10 a month. After a
while his salary was raised to twelve dollars a month because he was such a good teacher.
James Julian came to America during the Revolutionary War. One story has it that three Julian
brothers who were German Jews were run out of Germany and settled in France. During the
Revolutionary War, they volunteered to fight against Eugland with Lefette and came to America.
They stayed and a brother settled in South Carolina. The brother who settled in Virpinia
moved to Knox County, Tennessee, and was a grandfather or father of James N. Jullan.

After James came to Roan Mountain, he married Eliza Hampton, and his father-in-law gave
him the greater portion of what is now Heaton Creek. James and Ellza's children were
Caroline, William Marion, Lafette, George, Henry, and Eliza.

He was born in 1838 and died in 1919. He
The children were Willlam Browmlow, Betty
Her name

William Marlon was my great-great-grandfather.
married Myra Wughes, and they raised eight children.
llacker, Cain, Mun, Polly Lowe and Jane. He also had six children by another wife.
was Eliza Heaton.

William Brownlow became my great-grandfather. He married his first cousin, Minnie Holts-
elaw, and raised six children. le was born in 1884 and died in 1966. |lle is buried in the
liinkle and Julian graveyard in Roan Mountain. William Brownlouw's children were Ernest, Bernice,
Clatence, Thurman, leirl, and Novelle. Thurman is my grandfather and is still living. He
married Mable McMahan and they had four children--llershel, Donald Lee, Gerald, and Ondrea.
Donald is my father.

My knowledge of my ancestors is limited, but everyone tells me that they were hard-working
reliplons people who took much pride in the Julian nome.
the lumber business. Neither had much education. My great—grandfather never attended school
a day in his life but could write his name to sign checks and other papers. My greﬁt-gr?ndfnthel
was a very successful man. Along that time he owned five houses in the town of Roan Mountain
and one in Florida. lle also owned very much land. James Julian vas a respectful gentleman in
the community and was instrumental in starting the Methodist church on lleaton Creck.
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My preat-prandfathers were both In 8

HARLESS LARCENT
Iy
Tlna Roherson

e Tena wien born I Carter Connty Do the Wil tehead N1 aectlon,  Barlesa had tuo hrotlers
aul Tour sistera,  They then moved to Fork Mountaln, where they lved {n a slx room honse on a
Pinvt e W01, M aml his slaters and hrothers worked on a farm.  When he wis old enonph, he

started to work at North Amerlean Rayon for approximately one year. Then he declded to po to
wirrk At ETAWNE Rallroad Company, which he did for about three or fonr years, He gquit that

part lenlar Job aml worked for Haney Construction for about slx years. lle soon, however, vent
to the Army and fought in World War I, leaving in 1942 and coming home in 1945. 1hen in 1945,
llarless met Roste Whitchead. 7They pot married and she became Rosie Largent. They had three
boys named Freddle, DIllard, and Willard, and three pirls named Susan, Lucille, and Maxine.
They were a happy family. Rosle had a stepson and stepdaughter who came to visit cvery now and
then.  They were pood frilends with the stepslsters and step hrothers.

The largent Tamily moved from Fork Mountain to Bear Cape Road into a little white house
with [tve rooms. The kids all got married except Freddie and Willard. Warless and Rosle lived
tovether thirty-five years. One night llarless and Rosie were sleeping and llarless woke suddenly.
e bl boen baving a nightmare about dying, a dream he had dreamed twice before. lle told
Rosfe that he loved her and then had a 1ight heact attack. His wife screamed lor Maxine to
come and told her to o to Fd Whitehead's Store to pet n Pepsi.  The famlly called the rescue
squad and told them to meet them. The family got Harless into the car and drove up the road
ter Pat 1111, Harless' head fell back apainst the ear seat. The family called "Harless" and
"paddy,” but he could not answer. The rescue squad cacrried him to the hospital emerpency room
where medical people attempted to revive him. Thelr efforts were useless because larless had
died. 1is Family and friends were very unhappy. Harless' son was coming from Florida and
when he arclved and found out that his father was dead, he blamed himself. The family teld
him that 1t was not hls fault but that it vas time for Narless to die. This {a the story of
Har less Larpent.

JERRY AND DIANE MCKIMNEY
by
Angie McKinney

Jerry McKlnney was born April 1, 1860, and died April 7, 1945.
amd Mrs. BLll McKlnney. Jerry was born and raised in Mitchell County, North Carolina. Later
he hecame a farmer. le had mostly sheep. When my dad was a boy, Jerry pave him two live
sheep and pot him in the shecp business. Dad still has some sheep. At a later time, Jercy
moved to Shell Creek. My prandpaw was two years old at the time and he Is =ti{ll living at
the same place. Jerry lived to he about eciphty-five years old. 1le had marrled a woman from
the same place, and her name was Diane Osborne. Jerry McKinney was my great-prandpaw,

Jerry was the son of Mr.

Niane MeKlinney was
Cinmty, Morth Carolina.
at the apge of thircteen.
one hundred years. She

horn July 2, 1866, and died October 12, 1966. She prew up at Mitchell
She was the daughter of Mr., and Mrs, Dave Oshorne. She got marrled

She also Jolned the church at the same ape. She lived a lonp time--
fell and broke her hip at an earlier age and lived for a long time after.

Jderry amnd Diane got married and lived in North Carclina for a short time.
to Tennessce. They had ten children, five boys and five girls.
Iving--my grandpaw Garfield McKinney and Rev. Ed McKinney,
know [ would have loved them.

They then moved
Now there are only twa chlldren
Even though 1 never knew them 1

THOMAS BROWNLOW ODOM
by
Reth Anne Laura Relne

‘Thomas Brownlow Odom was born July 31, 1889, on Shields Creek which was later to he known
as Odom Town. Ilis parents were Waltes Odom and Rhoda Whitehead Odom, There were several
brothers and slsters listed as follows: Sam, MNancy, Sally, John, Vicle, Heal, Tolly, and
Milburn; Temple and Robert dled in early infancy or childhood. Tom died November 1972.

As a child, Tom lived on an eighty-acre mountain farm. The family raised ncarly all their
food, working oxen using a hillside turning plow as the farming implement. Tom never saw a
level land plow until he was a grown man. They sold peaches, apples, dried fruit, and other
rroduce in order to purchase necessities. Ilunting and fishing were dependahle food mources
aml Tem Tearned at an early ape to loal a hog clfle by standine on oa chiafr.
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Tom walked two miles through the woods to a one-room school house on Tiger Creek. Plato

Wright was the teacher with Ikey Wright and Nanny Lacey scrving as substitute teachers.

At age nlneteen, Tom married Laura Ellen Barnett. The wedding ceremony was performed on
Tiger Creek by A. J. Miller on February 24, 1909. They lived in o very small boxed liouse ncar
the Simon Wise house, and Tom worked in timber and sawmills for the wages of ten cents an hour,
Tom and Laura then moved to Odom Town and built a house on a piece of land adjoining the family
farm. Tom's brother, Sam, and his sister, Sally, also brought their respective spouses and
settled on the Odom Farm ducing this same time. Tom and Sally's husband, Will Hi1l, begon o
general store and were in business for three years. A. H. Miller had a store at the same
location.

Tom moved his family to White Rock, and he cut extract or paperwood for three or four years
for Dayton Hill before selling his team and wagon and leaving for work in Ironton, Ohio, where
his brother, Heal, lived. He worked in a locomotive plant that built morors used in mining
operations and stayed there for one winter. Returning to White Rock, Tom sold the property in
Odom Town and bought a home in Blevins in April 1929. He moved the family possessions to the
railroad by sled and loaded them onto a dump car pulled by a motor car which was operated by
Dave Lacey. After settling af Blevins, known to locals as "the Gorge," Tom worked at Bemberg
ad also at the White Rock tower. He then went to work on the railrond with a section crew
putting in ties, rails, and keeplng the track clear; the pay was twenty centa an hour and ten
hours a day.

Later on in life, Tom become a deputy sheriff working two years under Moreland, two years
under Ernest Brumitt, and four years under Mike Boatwright at which time the family moved to
Burbank (1943); he then worked with Dalphie Garland. =R

In 1945, Tom returned his family to Blevins and bepan a business on his property which
congisted of a small grocery store and barber shop. The rallroad was still in operation next
to his property line, soc Tom dug a road by hand groun1 the Doe River to allow for use by
automobiles.

Children born to Thomas Brownlow Odom and Laura Ellen Barnett Odom are listed as follows:
Clyde Ernest (3/24/10), Ford Henry (1/11/13), Florence Nettie (7/11/20) and June Bernice
(7/25/29). i

JACKSON G. POTTER
by
Tracle Bennett

Jackson G. Potter was an oldtimer who believed in publlc service. lie and his six sons
served their country for many years in the armed forces. All of his sons saw shooting action
and all returned safely home. Two of them made a career of the Army but have since retired.
Jackron was so anxious to get in on the action immediately following the Spanish American War
that he suddenly got three years older on paper so that he could slgn up in May 1901, After
tralning in Texas where he was assigned to the 12th Cavalry, he was shipped out to the Philli-
plne Tslands. He did not see battle actlion as the peace treaty with Spain was signed in 1898,
hut the occupation troops had plenty to do. That was during the day. At nipht some the soldiers
went out-on-the-town. They weren't supposed to get into any trouble. To help control the
possibilities the Army MPs wouldn't bother them if they ate some food before drinking the native
beer. After a little over three years, Jackson returned home to the mountains.

He lived on Buck Mountain for eighty-flve years.
They are Mrs. Nettle Slusser

Jackson was born on September 15, 1881.
He had seven brothers and four sisters, two who are still living.
of Roan Mountain and Mrs. Lillie Hardin of Elizabethton.

Jackson and his wife also had a family of six hoys. They were John (deceased); Robert
(deceased); Dan (San Antonio, Texas); Crawford (Buck Mountain); Stover (Alabama); and Henry
(llampton). There were six girls: Lillier Grant (Roan Mountain); Orpha Scott (Oklahoma); Cleo
Oaks (Buck Mountain); Destie Caraway (Buck Mountasin); Ann Oliver (Buck Mountaln); and Laura
Potter (deceased). The grandchildren have leveled off at forty, but at the last count of
great—grandchildren there 18 ‘a total of 100 and still climbing.

Jackson said hie had to steal his lovely wife Laura Bell. He courted her for sometime
before they decided to get married. They didn't exactly have her father's consent because he
sald that he "wouldn't let Laura Bell marry just anybody." On the day they decided to get
married Jackson went over to Laura's house for the showdown. Her mother was visiting a neigh-
bor and her father was gone.
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| Presnell, Rilde Presnell, Jdohn Presnell, Mary Presnell and Abraham.

Mews Patten dbed of eaover T 19920 Mo langhteg st Do Qose Tosband Fleasd with
Juekavn,  ALL of the Ll by ot Cembed the Lasee ] Fork Chvreels o G fst.

Ll b wan T ot rewardbog To 1l yearn. A Farm Caml Ly had to be Tndepemdent and
resourcelul.  Providing the essentlals of 1ife took hard work., The olil ldren attended Laniel
Fork Elementary School and then Clowed Ll 1 gh Sehonl,  There wieren®t selioon] huses In those
days so Uhal meant walklng both ways to school,  ackson carned extra money dur lng winter by
pawdnp Crees, brbombang and deagpetog them out . He hanled the lTops with o Ueam of horses to

, Hoan Monotabo, There the tealn banbed them o Bt o
b 1932 dackson staried bl Last term as a maglsteate for the W6th distefet of Carter
Wlth two previom teews Whis aceomted Lor elghteen yeara that he servedd his country

Connty.
gnnd home dlsteiet. lle had heen an active and staunch Repuhlican all of his 11fe. Even after

Tretiring from elective af flee hils Influence In the eounty contlnned for many years. It became
known that 10 0 man had the support of Jack Potler success was inevitable.
In recopnition of his many contrfbutions to his ecountry and to hls county, licksnn was

awarded an honorary 1Ufe membership in the Captain Lynn Il. Folsom Post 21-6, Veterans of
Forelpn Wars In Aupust 1965,

Jackson Potter was nlnety years old when he died on January 9, 1971.

He was my preat-
grand father.

Ellzabeth Potter
hy
Bryan Edwards

Sarah

My great-prandma, Savah Elizabeth Potter Campbell, was born on May 27, IR7R.  She dicd of
dinhetes on January 31, 1960. ller parvets names were Ezekil Potter and Iydian Maager. lNer
brothers names were Jdohn, Saulman, .Jack, Walter, Jake and Alfred. ler slsters names were
Potter Timhs, Mettie Slusser who Is stlll living, and Nettle lHarden who is still living. She
was marched on August 4, 1894, by Pastor Patten Vias, She married W. M. Camphell.  They had
fourteen children. Sewen dicd at an early ape. The rest of them are Allce Camphe 1l (Aprid
16, 1902); Jerry Ezeckll Coampbell (May 16, 1904); Lonas Campbell (August 20, 1905); Tilimin
Campbell (September 5, 1907); Viola and Nola (October 19, 1908) (twins whe died at an carly ape);
Tvalee Campbell (Octoher 5, 1909); Oassy Camphell (JTuly 16, 1911); and Matnard Camphell (May
22, 1912). She lived in Burnsville, North Carolina, for three years. Sarah then lived on
Buck Mountain the remainder of her life. On weekends Sarah rode a horse from home to the old
hotel on top of Roan Mountaln. From there she would go to Bakersville where she woulid et on
a traln to Burnsville.

Tane

She got her nickname, "Gramy," because she was so nlce to the children in Campbhell lollow,
She used to take them into the woods and show them the different plants and troes.
gnt too old For housckeeplng, she moved In with my grandma.
her other daughter. She staved theresix mnths.
her son. She stayed there three months.
in Carter County Memorial lospital.

When she
She alsa went te Ohin to Tve with
From there she went to Indiana to llve with
Then she came back and lfved ten years before she died
She was buried in the Isaac Cemetery un Buck Mountain.

ABRAIIAM LINCOLN PRESNELL
by
Randy Presnell

Abraham Lincoln Presnell was born April 20, 1880,
born in Beech Creck, Morth Carolina.
ond one sister.

He died November 12, I4Y65. lle was

lle was the youngest of eight children. lle had six hrothers
Thelr names were llam Presnell, Scofield Presnell, Finley Presnell, Carfield
Abraham spent his chi Ldhood
years on Beech Creck, North Carolina, While growing up he worked in a sawmlll with his father
and helped him farm. 7They Farmed so they would have Food For the family and so that they would
have a Jittle left over to sell and get a little bit of money. He alsa hunted amd Fished.

They would dig roots and herbs for money to buy things they couldn't prow.

Abraham and his famlly lived in a three-room house made of logs. 1In the wintertime, snow
would blow through the cracks in the house. When they woke up, they would find thelr blankets
covered with snow and their hands and feet almost Frostbitten., The mattresscs were made of
corn shucks and chicken feathers.. The plilows were also stuffed with feathers. Abraliam's
family made their covers from the furs of the animals they killed as well as Frem snall pleces
of elath they had left over from the elothaz they made,
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Mirabam belped support his famlly unt @l he was twenty-three years old when he marcebed
Borothy Marrlson, a ehlld bride of thirteen. Dorothy was burn and ralsed on Buck Mountaln,
Shee aued Alieatiam had six ehildren.  Two of them died at hirth. One of her sons dled From a
Biain hemorrhape.  The others are atill alive and well. Wille growlog up, Abraham's chilldrven
lus el provlde Food for the famfly.  Abraham had an ontstde Joh that providied thinps that
thiy conldn’t prim, e worked as a sawer for different people fneluding James Ray In Ashhy,
forth Garollna. e also worked fn Virginia and South Carelina. Many times he would take his
«hildren with iim. 1o would take my prandfather, Frank Prespell, with him often and teach him
the 6l ferent skl s he had learned over the years. e tanpht his chlldren to provide well for
thielr famliles, Mv prandfather grew up and got marricd. He and his wife had eleven children.

When my preat-gprandfather died, he sald he wouldn't "Torpet what everyone did Tor hifm
when he was In the preat place." My great-prandmother is still allve and well at the ape of
winety=six.  Four children are still alive. I feel very privileped to be a descendant of this
sreat man who was horn so many years ago and suffered great hardships in his 1ifetime but still
lad el sell-respect and made a good llving for his famlly.

LON ROARK
by
Shannon Roark

lam Roark was a man of ahnormal physleal strength, and with very Httle education lhie eonld
flpure put the longest arithmetlc problems. At ape twelve MNelson Roark, Lonnle's lather, was
wilklne across the mountaln dnto North Carolima. He was goning to huy pips. When he did nnt
return a Few members of the community went to look for hilm. He was found lumg by the neck with
a plece of hickory hark. It was thought that he had been robbed but no one was cver certaln
about hife death. An old work horse was one of the few things left to the family at Nelson's
death.  Lon who was twelve years old at the time tonk on the responsibility for the support of
the family, 018 nlder hrother who was seventeen had left home at this time to po to West
Virpinla tn work In the coal mines. He did not return for two years.

Lon would hire out to the farmers in the cogmunity.
Fifty cent= for his work and Fifty cents for the use of his horse, the average wages of the
time. lLon would plow, log, or do whatever kind of work he could get. [iis feet wonld get very
sore in the summertime because he had no shoes. At fourteen he pot a job at a local sawmill.
Il worked Forty straipht days before he ever received any pay. When payday flnally came the
mi1l hoss sald, "I owe this man more than any man here."” lle received forty dollars for forty

days work. Jle hid the money in different places on his body because he feared being robbed
on his way home,

Lonk brother Fd returned home a little over two years after Nelson's death. Ed was about
nineteen or twenty years old., One particular night everyone was In bed, and llke all Toucteen
year old hoys, lon was playing and making noises. Ilis brother Ed hollered From the other up-
stalrs bedroom and told Lon to be quiet or he would take the old leather strap te him. The
leather strap was a barher strap on which razors were sharpened and Nelson had used to punish
lila ehlldren when necessary.  Lon's mother told Ed to lrave Lon alone, but Bd went Into lon's
room to pive lilm a whipping. Lon reached up from a prone pesttion, took Ed by the hair with
his left hand, and gained €d's respect with his right hand.

A [ew years later Lon went to West Virginia and got a job In the mlnes. Because of his
preat physical strength he was able to load more coal than any man in the mine, and as a result
made more money. During the time he was in West Virginia he married Floey Rash. Lon and Ed
liad heated onutside hath houses in which thefr wives would wash clothes during the day and Lon
Al Fed would elean up In after work. One day as both men were takinp a hath, Ed bepan to flip
Lon on the behind with a wet towel. After a couple of warnings to quit, Lon had to gain Ed's
respect once apaln. After several years in the mines Lon saved enough money to buy a farm.

Transportation was very poor in those days and on his trip home l.on was forced to stop
at a small town for the night. All he could find for the night was a small run down hotel on
the outskirts of the town. While paying for the room Lon made the mistake of letting the desk
clerk see the money he had saved for his farm. When he went to his room Lon noticed that the
donr had na lock; 50 he slid a larpe high back dresser In front of the dnor. le discovered
that there was a window with no glass behiind the dresser. It led into the hallway., Lon
reallzed his sltuatlon and was certaln that the desk clerk would kry to rob him In the nipht.
Ile took his plrtol from hls small sultcase, and he emptied a box of shells onto his bed where
he sat down [aclng the doorway and waited for his robbers. Five times that nipht somcone tried
to open the door or come through the window. lle told them lie had a pun and would use it.
The next morning he left the hotel with his gun in his hand. lle met a policeman outside the
hnotel. The policeman asked him why he was carrying a gun. After Lon tnld the pnliceman what
Lol Boanpaend the olaly hafare, the anl{raman bald Lilo that thers had heon venorta Al neonlas
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For a l0-hour workday he would recelve

he operated a prist miil
his Mifc he Tnrmed.
iy great=gramipa.

Lon setthed on @ small farm In East Tennessee and rafsed flve chilldren. Durfng this time
and can a small country store.  The tast thirty eor furly years ol
lle died it the apge of elghty-three on New Year's Day 1971, This man vas

ALMA RERECCA JANE ROBERTSON

hy
Sandra Dee Robertson

She was the davghter af Thomas and Mable Robertson.
ghye had slx brothers and three slsters.  She was a very hright amd fun-loving pirl.  She Tovel
all kinds of sports. She left hilgh school for two years but returned to finish. She was a
very good student and her teachers nll thought she was a very hright student In nll subjects,
especlally in math. She wanted to bhecome a secretary.

Alma was Tovinply known as Janie.

Janie loved her hrothers but they were always picking on her and she would let them
have it. They would hold her and say "Mom, Janie is hitting us," and her Mom would say "You
started 1t., Now Flnish 1t!" and they would pet mad and go running to pet away from her.
Janie loved all kinds of muslc especially rock and roll. Janle had such a short 1ife that
much cannot be weltten about lier. She was killed in an auto crash in Frederick Connty,
Macyland, on the night of September 6, 1970. She left two children--a daughter Sandra Dee
and a son Juhn Burton. My grandparents are now ralsing my hrother John. Janle was burlied
at Stone Chapel Cemetery at WarEieldbury, Maryland. She was born on Aupust 15, 1951, at Gist
Maryland and dled on September 6, 1970.

ARTHUR AND DOVIE SHELL
by
Angi Shell
Arthur Chester Shell was born December 15, 1898, at home in Roan Mountain. lle had two
borthers and six sisters, They were Carrle Winters, Lillian Knight, Edith Bare, Geneva MNave,
Blanche Shell, Maude Johnson, Frank Shell and Floyd Shell.

Dove Street Shell was born July 31, 1900, at home in Roan Mountain., She had three sister
and ten brothers., They were Myra, Mollie, Annie, llarrison, Will, Bale, Graner, Joe, Fondren,
Roby, Bud, Frank, and Cranille.

Arthur and Dovie had eight children. They were Willie Cox, Fred Shell, Bert Shell,
Frankie Cox, Verl Shell, Dempsy Shell, Betty Jean Frye, and Eddie .loe Shell. Arthur and
povie lived on Nampton Creek all their lives. Arthur's father owned seven hundred acres on
Nampton Creek and Sugar Hollow. They had a large farm where they raised animals such as cows,
sheep, horses, pigs, chickens, ducks, goats, mules, dogs, and cats. Their parden consisted
of suqash, corn, heans, potiatoes, radishes, etc. 'The description of their honse s as follows
1t was a one story house with four rooms. It had newspaper and cardboard for wallpaper.
Arthur had a huge feather tick bed. They kept their milk and burter in a springhouse.
the living room, they had a trapdoor under a chair where they kept their potatoes. They
moved From the head of Hampton Creek. They purchased a huge two bedroom house near the foot
of Hampton Creek. They lived in it until they purchased a trailer.

In

Dovie died vn
She had had

Arthur died on March 20, 1979, Hls death was causcd by a lung discase.
March 28, 1979, elght days later. She had two heart attacks before she dled.
a pacemaker inserted before she died but when it stopped, 1t was all over.

DANIEL SHELL, SR.
by
Denise Stevens and Toni Zollinger

Johanna was born in 1730. liis home country is not known. Ille arrived In Philadelphia on
the ship "Rubert and Allce." The ship was from Rotterdam, Netherlands, but the ship made a
stop in an Enplish port called Towes. 1t Isn't known when or where Jolunna pot on the ship.
lle settled in Lancaster County, Pennsylvania. January 1748 records show he tried to buy 100
acres in Adams County. Pennsvlvania. lle had the necded warrant for the 1land, but during the
survey it was discovered the Jand was already sold. It {s belleved that he was bound or
indentured because of the length of time between his arrival and the time when he tried to
buy land (1742-174B). By records in Lancaster Ceunty dated 1757, he paid land taxes. loweve:
Hhiere is no reeard of any actual boving of land.
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In 174 Lhanna merrfed Anna Cathiaring Certade In the Trintty Lotheran Chineeh by -
oty ety . Acoordbng e ehinrel records of bapt Lama, they bad eloven o Bdron e Fol Do,
Ll B L), boen In Lo nsst or Comnty nn donmary R, 1757 Tt el duly 0, 17500 e Tonight
P Ul Wevaalal Fonaary Wan .

Amna MarLa, bhurn In lancaster Count

lenry Shell, horn In 1755,
Earnl ina. n

Mhvhael Shell, born In 1759,

Sara Sl born In 1761,

Catherine Shell, born about 1763,

Goertrwle Shell, bwoan on Octohoer M, 1766, In Pennsy lvania
Han v baml 1o the Reform Congrepntlonal Chorel,

wenjamin Shell who settled in Mlsslissippi. No known birthdate.

Cauper JIundor, horn May 27, 1772 in llagerstown, Maryland, haptized June 5, 1773.

tharles Frederick, horn Novemher 25, 1774 in llaperstown, Maryland, baptized In the Zion

eform Chareh in laperstown, (The Relprem Conpregational and the Zlon Reform could he the
same choreh, )

y on April 3, 1753; baptized duly 3, 1750,
Later he settled In South Caralina and moved Into North

ane hapt Ized [n aperstown,

Recurds show Jdohanna snld 275 acres in 1768 in 1

Aancaster Coonty.  With this and the
laptism| records, he mst ha

g ve moved to Hagerstown, Maryland. It is known he moved to Lincoln
Loty North Carolina, before July 19, 1779, 1t s belleved that he got on a ferry, crossed

the Tanies River and landed in Virginia. He then traveled through the Shennandoah Valley to
Lincaln County North Carolina.

tahanna dled ahout 1804 in Wickory, North Carolina.

IHs will was dated June 22, 1804.
Flnal settlement on the will was April 10, 1806 in 1L k

incoln County, MNorth Carolina.

tolemna's oldest son, John, was born 1n 1750,

In 1772 he married Catherina Selpley,
A son, Danlel 1. Shel).

inel i

Nanlel Shell had several sons,

one of whom Lﬂs Daniel Shell, Jr.
Cowmity, Morth Carollna, in 1785,

He married Polly Miller who 1ived in Johnson County, Tenncssee
Folly's father deeded the land he owned to Daniel. Daniel later moved to the Shell Creek area
ol Garter Comnty. Danlel Shell, Jr., had several sons and daughters. One son was Lenore

Shell (IR78-1958). lLenor's sons were Ford, Claude, and Carl. He had four daughters,

lle was born in Burke

HUBERT RAYMOND SHELL
by
Todd Johnson

Hubert Raymond Shell wos born on March 24,
were Thomas and Lottie Shell.
Thomas, Jr., and one slster, Maggle.
1897. lia mother and sixtecn-year-old

1895, nnd died on March 22, 1977.

lile parents
lle was born on Shell Creek.

lle had two.brothers llenty and

His father died when he was two years old which was about
flater contacted typhotd fever and died when Hubert waa
about seven years uvld. lubert and his older brother moved tn Minneapnlla, North Carolina, to
Llve vith a relative. IHs younger brother, Thomas, stnyed on Shell Creck with his
llubert and his Lrother took jobs working from daybreak to dark in the fields, They left
Minneapolis as tecnagers and returned home to Shell Creek.

Hubert met his future wife Faithi
on March 14, 1914. To them were born thirteen children;
chiildhond, There wnre six boys and seven girls, The boys were Carl, Allen, Dexter, Conly,
Kell and Dale,; The girls were Essie, Shirly, Oakie, Deola, Nell, Arlys, and Ruth. They had
thirteen children, forty-two grandchildren, sixty-eight great-pgrandch fhren, and seven great-
great grandchildren. =

! ~

flubert worked in the iron ore mines in Cranberry, North Carolina.
Creek to Cranberry, worked ten hours, and walked back.
a timber cutter for Ritter Timber Company at CGrandfather
other timber cutting jobs in other

e and after about a year of courting, they were married

four died in the early months of their

He walked from Shell
After he quit mining, llubert worked as
Mountain in North Carolina and several
states including one in Virginia, In 1937 he went to work
at the Horth American Rayon Plant in Elizobethiton, Tennessce, lle worked thore [or many years
until he retired. Alter he retired lie raised tobacco and had a few head of cattle, mostly [or
his own use, Back in 1929 he bullt a log cabin with only four rooms on ten mcres of land which
was all woodland except the homeplace. Later he cleared the land for raising crops and for
grazing cattle. After he had made a little money, he built more onto the log house, which is
still standing, and put in running water, a bathroom, and electricity. On his property he had
a barn, tobacco building, and a woodhouse, After all his children had grown up and gotten
married, Hubert and Faithie tock in Faithie's niece who lived with them until she married.
father was in service and her mother had died.
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grandparents

of sixty-four.

o fanday maratog I Maech 1972, Nabert loul o steoke.  Nle was part tally paralyaed. e
covercd enongh to walk, talk and do some 11pht chores around the honse.  Flve yrars later -
E ||-|-i hin second stroke and passcd away, ks wlfe Is s1111 Viving In the old home place.  She

n olphty-three yeara old.  Habert was burted in the Richardson Cemetery on Shell Creek.

JULTA ANN STOCTON
hy
Shannon Stockton

Julla Ann Stocton was born on July 1891, She was the daughter of E. L. and Eurfe I!;;{Ims.
he marrled John Frvin Stocton.  ‘They had nloe children which Included four daun?lcfs an n
lve sons.  1he hny's names were Claud, Voyd, Marshall, Spence, and Faul. The g ;1 : n:::J“f
e o R”:"-‘Es‘“;; ‘J':d I:(i’? In:::ﬂ:f.irn.ll:t‘\-i:;u?}iokfr‘:\tsthrshaby amd

3 Ied when their Flrst child was : T

c: n;n?ﬂnhll:;;:.mn::{id"n:;:: :nd had two more children. le died and his wife hod to be put
: sement;] hospital. Julia had to taoke care of these children. She had a hard time tnk[ngl
'“r: of her family. Tn the summer she had the crops to tend and the Farm animals to feed :nn
{:‘n" cow to milk. She would take the small children teo the garden and sit them d:wrl lnr: 2 ace
Ehe énutd keep an eye on them as she went about tending to the crops. She rnis: pnt:\IE :‘;nd
tnfn beans, pumpkins, onlons, squash, etc. As the vepetables ripened she would can t1o.d- .
put ;hem up for the winter. They would ralse hogs for meat and also chickens For meat an e:g
g:rir cows supplied them with milk and butter. 1In the fall they would dig ll\c{l; E:t:to:; an
htéro them [or winter. The apple trees supplied them with apples to make ﬂpplc “: e 1: g8
Jelly. They also had an apple house made out of stone in which they kept apples dn :.k b
sinter time. In the summer when berrles were ripe Julia would go to the field ?n hp c S
strawberrles and hlackberries wiich she would can or make jelly from. She didn :( av: :don
.'(,,,nvcnlrllt‘es that we have taday. She cooked on a \:noﬂstnve and the famlly ate o o a h:d o e
:Lahlr with woooden benches on each slde. She didn't have carpet on her rlnnrs.b ;IE ‘u[:h
fflnors that had to be scrubhed with seap and water. Thelr house had one lnrpeh e.tn?g e
‘several beds. Whenever she had housework to do and the children were sTall, she wou hi
‘the bed leg and sit {t on the children's dress tail so that they couldn't get into :ny; dn:;dc
Julla had to wash clothes on a washboard down by the creek with homemade lve soap 11: h: ; :
‘When the children or other members of the family were sick she would doctor thrm ubt . :e{ .
‘remedies. For cold she would make catnip tea. Julia had to sew and make clothes by a: ba ,
‘the children to wear. There was 1lttle money for clothes and store boupht gonds. Her husban
‘had to work on a job so most af the farm work was left for her to do.

her husband died and she was left alone. She lived by herself as long as she
‘wan ni?e%gﬁzth itunot s0 that she could not take care of herself and 1ive alone sheqstayef
‘with her ehildren. She Cinally went to stay with the pranddauphter she rai=ed, In September
11977 she died and was burled in the Stocton Cemetery beside her husband after living a long
and fulfilling life. She was 86 when she died.

WILLIAM D. TOLLEY
by
Emily Diane Tolley
Hilllam D. Tolley was born on Aupust 30, 1910. His parents were the late Charlie and
Ellen Tolley. Belup born te farmers he learned to farm also. lle worked wery hard at :ve;ign
thing he did. When he was twenty years old he married Ruth Victoria Rarnectt o April &, 0,
in Jolinson City, Tennessee. lo worked very hnrd. William was one of the moat honest men one
L could evor know. o was 1iked hy everyone he knew. lle and Ruth ralsed three chilidren, Sl;l!a.
Bud, and Carl. Timen were hard back then, hut he always kept plenty to eat. On his farm he
- raised hogs, cowe, and horses. MNe planted corn, potatoes, and other vegetahles.

Willlam had seven grandchildren hefore he died. They were Allen, Kathryn, Helen, Ruth,
Fmily, Bi1l, and Ricky. If he had lived to know, he had two more grandchildeen: Carl, Jr.,
aml Jerry. One of hia prandchildren, Helen, had gpotten married to Rob Blevins and they
had Rebble Maria.

12, 1974, at the age
William made moonshine and cut timher, also. He died on September . 4
5 Before he died he became a.nomber of the Church of Jesus and lived a Christian

life for a number of years. To me my papa was the greatest.

|
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JAMES WAYCASTER
by
Tonya Edwards

James Waycaster was a hrave, military man. lle was born in 1920 and died in 1976, lle
fought in World War II and had six children-~Buddy, Brenda, Allen, Tommy, J.R., Cnd Linda.
Ilta mother's name was Mrs, Zellia Haycaster. His father was Charles Waycaster. “The lived on
Buck Monntain. James hnd two brothers, one Iiving and one dead, nnd two slatera, only one 1iving.
Jnmes was drafted in 1940 and served in the South Pacific. He was at Pearl llachor on December 7,
1961, Jamen served nine years and received nine medals and commendations. When he wns dig-
charged from the military in 1949 he moved to several different places., He moved to Ashland,
Tennessee, where he worked spraying enamel on hot water heaters, but he hecame 111 and had to
return to Roan Mountain in 1970. James moved againf ,l'hls time to North Carolina, but he became
111 again and was checked into a veterans' hospital at Black Mountain, North Carolina. He
stayed in the hospital for several months and it was determined that he had lung cancer. When
he was released from the hospital, he returned to Roan Mountain to live with hia sister, Georgia
May Edwards. He became much sicker and was checked into the veteran's hospital in Johnson City.
James lived sbout one year after that time and was in and out of the hospital during the year.
James died in 1976 and was buried at the Mountain Home Cemetery with a military funeral.

JAMES T. WHITEHEAD
by
Scotty Stanley
James T. Whitehead, a noted hunter, lived with his wife, Sally Chambers Whitehead, and
several dogs on Tiger Creek. He lived to be eighty-six years old. His wife lived to be ninety-
seven years old. James was a very well known man and a dear friend of Govenor Alf Taylor.
When Mr. Taylor ran for governor and the votes started coming, he kept asking if the votes from

Tiger Creek had come in. The final vote for Taylor Erom Tiger Creek and Limestone Cove were
551 for and none against. {

Tiger Creek aslong with Tiger Valley got its name from James Tiger Whitehead. We was a {
famous bear hunter. It is written on his gravestone that he killed 99 bears. On his death |
bed, a neighbor brought him a small cub to kill so that it could be sald James Tiger Whitehead
had killed 100 bears. James refused to kill the cub.

James kept several dogs. He loved his do

gs very dearly and expected other people to treat
them as well as he treated them. One da

y a fur trader came to James' house to buy some furs.
As James and the trader started into the house, one of the dogs jumped on the trader; the trader
kicked the dog. With fire in his eyes James told the tradar to leave. The trader's treatment
of the dog was an insult to James and he refused to sell the trader any furs.
James had a large grist mill, He kept many familles in fond because he was a generous man,
James 18 now buried in a small cemetery on Tiger Creek. Ile was the firat person to huried
there. He had picked that spot because he had killed his largest bear there. His wife'is
buried beside him. The tombstones read as follows: "Noted llunter, James T. Whitehead 1819,
Died Sept. 25, 1905, Killed 99 Bears, We Hope He Has Gone To Rest; Sally Garland, Wife of
James Garland, and James T. Whitehead, Age 97, She was not only a mother to the human race, but
to all animal kind as she gave nurse to one fawn and two cubs, she is now resting from her I.abu:.'_"

JAMES "WOLFE" WHITEHEAD
by
Brett Thomas Matthew Reine

According to Margaret Whitehead Reine's extensive research of public trecords, the oldest
Whitehead recorded is James "Wolfe" Whitehead. He was dubbed "Wolfe" as his parents were and
are still wnknown. The nickname of "Wolfe" would seem to refer to the ancient myth of the
abandoned twin boys, Romulus and Remus, who were found and suckled by a female wolf, The Carter
County census records list his parents as unknown and his birthdate as 1793. However, his
tombstone shows his 1ifespan as 1789-1884. Carter County court records show that James was
married on May 1, 1821, to Jane Garlend. Jane Carland Whitehead's birthdate is recorded in
the 1850 Carter County census as 1806, However, her tombstone notes the same 1ifespan as her
husband's marker 1789-1884. Her mother's nome was Susannah CGarlund, and she lived in Unicoi
County, Tennessee; her father's name is unknown.
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Aecoriding Lo Carter Connty consus records Tn 1850 James "Wol e Wil tehead was 57 years old
wl dane Garland Whiltehead was 44 years old.  Thelr children are llsted as Sara 22, Hnr_y 0,
win 18, Corter 15, Thoemas 12, David 10, Viney 9, Hannah 8, amd Elizaheth 3. The name Geerpe
Lirver, age 20, s also llsted among this household, and it is assumed that he was a slave or
ard of James "Wolfe" Whiteliead.

James and lane were ploneers to the the area now known as Roan Mowntaln, Tennessee, and
cqulred mmy acres of lantd In the Blevins-Nopson area. They are burled in the Blevins Cemetery.

'
| James and Janc Whltehead were my great-great-great-preat grandparents on my mother's side

of the famlly tree. Thelr twn sons, Thomas and Carter Whitelhead, were my preat-great-great
rondfathers on my prandfather's side of the family tree, James and Jane were m): great-great-
:reat-grnul grandparents on hoth the maternal and paternal branches of my mother's family tree.

Many of the personal possesslons of James and Jane such as bibles, quilts, gugs. and )
cooking utensils are in the possession of thelr descendants. Photographs fo four o thel;’surl\:.
Johin, Thomas, Carter, and David, are also property of family members as well as being on display
at a local eating establishment (Pizza Inn, Elizabethton, Tennessee).

WILLIAM WHITTEMORE
by
Brian Whittemore

| My grandfather Willlam Whittemore was born in 1900 in Tolley Town on the other slde of the
' fron Mowntain. 1is mother died when he was born. My grandfather lived with his grandmother
IRebuccn Whitchead Tolley and her husband Daniel Tolley. He and his two vear old brother
Earnest Whittemore, lived ahout two years with his grandparents until his father remrrled'nnd
Ituok William and Earnest to live in Elizabethton. They stayed a short time. The children's

fgrandfathar, Daniel, heard that the children were being mistreated so he walked across the Iron

Mountain and got them. He carried them back to Tolley Town to live with him,

" William's grandparents had an old log house with an open Eireplace. His uncle was holding
him in Eront of the fire and happened to have a selzure and dropped William intn the fire.

| William had o scar on the side of his head where he had gotten burned.

When he was eight years old William attended school in a little school house in old Falrvie
The boys, Willlam and Earnest, never got to go to school very much because they had to help with
the work at home. William's grandfather died when William was fourteen years old. Shortly
therealter Willlam got a Job with Bud Smalling who had twe sawmills. Smalling had houpght land
and timber in Clarktown, about two miles from where my grandfather Willlam 1ived with his
William would start walking to work before daylight. His first Job for Smalling
Horses were used to log. They pulled train cars on wooden tracks.
and the men could saw three thousand feet of lumber a day; a typical
work day was from sunup to sundown, about twelve hours. Bud Smalling was smart and was able "
to develop ways to get his lumher to Hampton. He built a flume or troft from the top of Clark-
town to lampton where he stacked his lumber. The railroad came through liampron. The lumber
would Fall from the sawmill edge into the Flume. Water ran in the flume and it carried the
lumber. Men had to be along the flume and when it got clogped up, they gor 1t unclopped.
of the older men of Hampton can still remember the flume.

grandmother.
was swamping roads to log.
There was some fine timber

Some

Ahout all the men drank whiskey in those days. The men would order the whiskey and 1t
would be shipped on the train to Blevins station close to White Rock on the road to Roan Mountaf
The men would get a pallon or two each. One of the men would go get all the vhiskey and briog
it back. This was during Prohihition days. Later some of the men made moonshine. 7The
people would make music and dance. There would be corn shuckinpgs where a Jar of moonshine would
be put in the bottom of the corn plle. When the corn was shucked, the men would drivk the
Whiskey. All the families would help each other with whatever needed to he done,

Bud Smalling owned ahout all the land in Falrview. lle had a lot of lm:!hvr stacked at
Hampton, and When World War I was over he liad held his lumber for higher prices. Instead the
prices dropped and Smallipng lost ahout everything. He sold most of his land to people in
Fairview. lle had a big farm on the Falls Road (now the Ray Simerly Road) which he kept. My
grandfather got a hetter job. lle hecame a teamster; he drove horses and logred. Hecause he
was two years too younpg my gprandfather did not have to go to war. e worked and staved with his
grandmother.

A




Willlam's pramdfather had been a "horse trader.
Mamtaln Ter o cow saddbe amd 4 sack of salt.
tir Virplonla with |

e bought the novth slde of the fron

Salt wan very hard to get then. People went

wrse pulled wapona to bring back salt.

Pulpwood was hanled to Wampton and loaded on o rallroad ear to he shipped to a paper com
The road hiad to be constantly worked on hecause the wagons loaded with pulpwood would

cut down Into the road and make ruts. Poles had to be put across the road about one foot apa

go Lhe wapons woulid not sink and get stuck. When a wapon happened to pet ntuck the passenperd

liad te walt vntl] someone came along and helped pull them out. There would be two to thrce
teams Lo one wapon.

paany .

The people all had cottle and hogs. There were no fences so the caftle and hops Tan Loof
m the mountalos.  The people would take turns hunting the milk cows and bringing them In. T
wonld milk them and put them up at night. The next morning they would milk them apain and tu
them out.  The hops would stay out, There were plenty of chestnuts and acorns for them to ea
The people would mark thelr hogs to be able to {dentify them. When sows had pigs, the pips
would be caught and marked for the next year. There {5 a place ealled Hog Pen Gap. This is
where hop pens were built. With the help of dogs the hogs were driven to this place and penn
wp.  They were fed corn ond grain and Fattened up for killlnp. The hog meat was put {n smokel
liones and salted and cured. Because they didn't hawve jars to can in, people dried most of
thelr food. Some was pickled and some was made into jams, jellies, applebutter or put in st
Jars or crocks. Almost every family had bees and used the honey for sweetening.

My grandfather's brother, Earnest, left home when he was about thirteen years old. Iile
wenl to West Virginia. My grandfather went up there later and worked in the coal mines for a
while. He came back and married Rena Cochran when he was twenty years old. They moved to a
Little house where he was born and lived two years. He began working for Bud Smalling again,
#nd moved to Smalling's farm. Two sons were born there, Otis and Roy. Roy is my father.
Willlam 1ived there for five or six years. The winter was very cold then. He would have to
chop a hole in the ice where the creeks would freeze over so that the horses could drink.
The creeks would freeze so hard the horses coulld walk over them and not break through.
later, my grandfather and his family moved to Fiddler's Branch and lived there for a while;
Willlam stil] worked for Smalling. He would go mee his grandmother often to get her whatever
she needed. Wnges averaged about ten cents an hour. My grandfather then moved to the

Twion farm where his daughter Roxle (now Mrs. Roy Hyder) was born. This was in the 1920s and
times were hard.

My grandfather met a man named Bob Byrd. He owned a small house in Fairview on 12 acres
Bob was going to Michigan to get a job. So my grandfather bought the house and land. I now
live In the same liouse in Falrview. Bemberg and North American came to Elizabethton and my
prandfather got a Job there. e made ahout twelve dollars a week. The ronda were bad and my |
prandfather and all the men had to walk to the bottom of Simerly Creek (about four or Flve ]
miles) to cateh a taxl to Elizabethton. TIn the winter the men worked all three shifts. The l
!

temporature wan froezing and atorms would occur which wonld cavae the creeks te flood the

roads. The men would have to walk through the woods to pet home. When they changed shifts
they would pet very little sleep.

William's grandmother 1lived in Tolley Town until the late 1920s when she died of old agel"
ller sons lived around the mountain in the area that is now Tolley Town. (The Tolleys came to I
South Carolina from Ireland and England. They worked their way up through North Carolina to
Clarktown.) |

)

A
My grandmether was Rena Cochran Whittemore. Her father owned the land that the school i
was on at old Falrview. He gave the land to his daughter Nola. She married Nat Carver, and
they Ilved in the school house. My grandmother Rena and her brothers nmow live in what is now
Falrview. Crandmother's brother John Cochran owned a grocery store. John gave an acre of |
land and the people built a two-room school building. They had box suppers to help pay for th
school and supplics. When they went to church, they had to walk about four miles to Clarktown
So the people started a church, John Berry gave a corner of land. The people gave some il
lumher and some did the work. They gave what money the could, and when they got it under roof
the people had box suppers and cake walks to buy whatever else they nceded. The church is
still standing in Falrview. TIt's where I go to church now.

|

My grandfather died in 1941, My grandmother dled in 1966. All that T have written
about happened before I was born. My dad, Roy Whittemore, told me what his Father told him.
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MANGY RAGHEL WILLIANS
l!_\r
Harasha HeKlnney

ller parents were Larkin

; i 16, 1R59,
Nancy was horn in Ashe County, HNorth Carollna, on June 16, R e o kaarher

and Saval RWilllnms. She had three sisters, Lizzie, Mollie and Ellen.
nhck amd Rilly.
When Naney was a very yonng by
the mountains on a camping trip. Thelr purpnseluns
ake n Ulving. They mule eamp ans Went to sleep. Sl el y Lo ¥
U‘u:(‘ there wis about three or four Inehes of soow on them. From thils ntpl:ur- :1‘.:;‘ r:':::-: ‘”r
:mw-rv bad care of asthma. This disease stayed with her the rest of her 1 “:.vﬂ [r"m. a;ﬁg
:I\m.lt. soventeen years old she met and fell in Iloue :lth a {l:: ynuﬂr:;;vn-::;e dﬂ.r“; e 1;\@.@ _".“1
| d for approximately one yeat. 3 A
M R o o tid) bel married for a short time this fine
lits name was Dawid Ashely. After belng ms i
ouple moved to a place called Squirrel Creck just above Minneapolls, II:;zth (’Z\:;nli?ni‘om:i]‘:n
c'li\-[llruz there they had twe lovely daughters, Betty and Mary Ann. M’terl. :tqr‘yh‘"1 r:‘:— hoL Ty
seloped childbed fever and almest died. This disease made }Innct' semtce cl I‘N-.c 2Rt
d“.‘Il she trled to glve her children awnay. f course, Navid 1.'rml||nl t :f“:‘il;l::‘»or ;1.,-\-9 I
:I :;-u ehe wasn't fn linr cight mind. After this dreadful dlr-c:;se Ian;_\ c1‘,-; e ““;1 =
hi1dr E : : r rion on their twoe daughters. W e i
n. The urt put all their love and affec : e
;:::;:r;nrnlinnt ':h!uypthr aldost danphter married Bert Tsnacs. She ;tlvknf‘tv:h:r;::m:r:“ sg-,:_s,
pavid, Haney and Mary Aon moved to Tennessee. They moved to Shell Creck en

ahe went with her C[ather, her sisters, and brothers to
to pather evergreens for resale in order
They slept very warm, hut whien they

were married.

Mary Ann met and fell in love with Rohert Briges. They were married and had cne son
navid Dripps and three dauphters, Ethel, NHellie and Annabelle.

In the meantime Hancy's asthma prew worsec. Mary Ann's husband had died; ;0 H.\.n:_\;qn:d‘
pavid moved in with Mary Ann. By this time the asthma had Ktilt:lmn_ 50 t;nd th:{e:e ::;\“e ;mr.“
k. She and Pavid stayed with Hary ann qu 7
jonper ahle to do her owm housewor R tia Sdiers
o . Hancy and Pavid moved bac g
Hellle met and marvied Bert Elliott AR
¢ the granddaughter and her
sed in with them and stayed a while, After : d =
l::::?r ull:rn pavid hired a girl to come in and take :nredof Na?c}dandq}:: E:e:'l:oh!;.rn::::r“u!“
_ : d her Bihle and her Lord. = sper ™
Ir was a fine Christian lady who love ) ; Foth
L;"ﬁ:c fire reading her Bible continually. She was also a devoted wife and mother

About three years before she died, MNancy's asthma turned into tuhetcu.;l:;sl:]. m;c:“s;:: was
confined to her bed the rest of lher 11fe. On June 8, 1928, vhe was huried in the @saacs

Cemetery.

JAMES WALTER WINTERS
by
Marsha Winters

On July 23, 1BB6, a sbn was horn to Monroe Winters and Alice Dan!:ls “irntl:‘Y:. !Tl::;
: 3 : oy h
hildren in this family. our hoy
named him James Walter Winters. There were seven Sl D s
in. The girls were Mamie, Nam,
irls. The boys were Harvy, Riley, and Mart
':‘:::52151 helped their mother and Ffather with the farming and the gardening.

arch 15,
James served four vears with the United States Army in Texas and in !lrxicri‘ S"l:-':c\-“\-
1913 I iu‘ married Miss Mellie Whittington at Shell Crcek,“Tt-n:es:;o. ::::-11:-1-11-::\ Fl"l1\|-! e
; g {sters. er brothers ? v, Clavd, St2
! amily. She had Five brothers and five s > - Wyosa
Il':l:ge ‘ll.‘:-: {'llhrd and Noward., Her sisters vere Bessie, Vert, F‘l‘;!s:l‘.ll:llh: MT:]W;;:n\r
i 1 . = ~res of land. They farmed the land and rs : i
Nellie bullt thelr howe on forty clght ncres ¢ 3 ; o
ﬂ;\ August 10, 1914, their first child was born. They named the little girl Martie. They

ars later their second child was born on toverber 6, 1916, Thev

were so proud of her. Two ye SR

named him ®illard. McKinley was born on Max 14, 1920 and ‘l"h.-_-:-dg\re 5;.14 I‘::Z ::r:nrt“”‘_
1922. On September 18, 1926, Awlrey was born. Then James knltrc;. 1r1i1-, oy ‘w;n AUy
was born on .June 5, 19303 Margaret was bornion June 15, 1932Z; a;: ;;;d“;‘ 1;1.1_}.“-“”-;.|m_. x
4, 1939. James and Hellle hnd nine children, twenty-eight gnmd cr ;.;-n-:-.q‘ B
grent—grmr-lchl‘ldrrn. Three sons, Mekinley, James Jr., and :‘ho:‘v'o:r. it il e
andd a1l fonght In World War T1. G Tune 16, 1950, Watt thelr t1 “t‘.; lh‘“;"‘;\_ Sl

al the time. Hillard didd in 1079, The other children are stil \11;;{_&”." eban L
sons. lle now lives in Jonesboro, Temiessee. Theodore who h:d tlvehi;d i ih‘“ e i_gqg\-lgu_
three pirls now lives in Newland, North Carolina. Audrey had one ¢ o i\-..i i .‘“rls ong
Bill had two children and lives in rainsville, Ohio. James 3

T Pliv1 15 who had threa plrls now Huves In Djver Sprinee, Tranerece,

lives In Roan Mowntaln.
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James died at the age of eiphty-three,

Chapel Church on Buck Mount alu, Tenneatee.  Neld

thelr home (Ifty or so years agn,
and Jamea was my great-grandfather,

She ia eclghty
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e was a retired farmer and a member of Taylor

le Ia sacll] Miving whiero she amil James Nl
-nine years old. She is my great-gprandmotiy
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